

TA

**NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT**

**between the**

**BIG WALNUT PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT  
STAFF ASSOCIATION/OEA/NEA**

**and the**

**BIG WALNUT BOARD OF EDUCATION**

**July 1, 2022**

**through**

**June 30, 2021**

*Grmanda Organito*  
*4/29/22*

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

### ARTICLE III - ASSOCIATION'S RIGHTS

- A. There will be no reprisals of any kind taken against any member by reason of membership or participation in any of the Association's lawful activities.
- B. Representatives of the Association will have access to all school buildings and to all members, provided that the exercise of this right does not interfere with the regular work day.
- C. The Board will, upon reasonable request, provide the Association with any public documents and/or data which will assist it in developing intelligent, accurate, informed and constructive programs on behalf of members.
- D. During the school year, the Board shall distribute the Board's official agenda and addenda including, but not limited to, financial reports of each Board meeting, including any special meetings, via the District's e-mail system, to the BWPSSA President and Vice President at the same time a copy is sent to Board members. During the summer, the Board shall distribute the Board's official agenda and addenda, including but not limited to financial reports of each Board meeting, including any special meetings, to the BWPSSA President and Vice President, via e-mail, unless U.S. mail is requested, at the same time a copy is sent to Board members. Minutes of each Board meeting shall be posted on the school website.
- E. The Association shall have the following rights:
  - 1. The Association will have the right to use the school buildings without cost for meetings, provided there is not a conflict with the use of the space on the requested day and time and a custodian is on regular duty. The date, time, and section of the building to be used will be cleared on the calendar of the principal of that building.

If the Association is hosting a non-member on Board property, the name of the non-member will be shared with the building principal in advance of the meeting. The Association will make its best effort to directly supervise the non-member at all times while on Board property.
  - 2. The Association will have the right to use school facilities and equipment, when such use does not interfere with the regular school use. Such use shall be on school premises and any costs for expendable items shall be paid by the Association.
  - 3. The Association will have the right to use inter-school mail, employee mailboxes, and Internet e-mail. The Association has the right to place organizational materials in all members' mailboxes. Copies of all such material may be shown to the building principal, but approval from the principal will not be required.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

4. The Association will have the right to have a letter prepared by the Association informing members new to the District that the Association is recognized as the exclusive bargaining agent for all members in the District.
5. The rights and privileges granted to the BWPSSA/OEA/NEA by this Article will not be granted to any other group or organization which purports to represent any member covered by this Negotiated Agreement.
6. Use of the District's daily inter-school mail system, individual school mailboxes, school e-mail, bulletin boards that are located in staff lounge areas, and the public address system before or after the student day, for the distribution of Association materials and information to members.
7. Two (2) Association representatives in addition to the OEA Labor Relations Consultant are permitted to address potential new members at the new staff orientation meeting, if such meeting is held. The Association and/or OEA Labor Relations Consultant shall be permitted to address the bargaining unit at annual district opening convocation an end-of-year closing ceremony, if such meetings are held.

The District shall provide an annual orientation for all newly hired staff members prior to the start of the school year. The District shall provide written notice to the Association president and vice president of the date, time, and location of all new staff member orientations not less than ten (10) calendar days prior to any orientation meeting.

The Association shall be provided with not less than sixty (60) uninterrupted minutes of time to communicate with potential new members at each new staff member orientation. Only potential new member shall stay during this portion of the orientation.

8. Permission to make announcements during school faculty meetings, provided notification is given to the Principal.
9. Representatives of BWPSSA shall be permitted to address the Board during the hearing of the public portion of Board meetings, pursuant to Board policy.

F. To promote input from the BWPSSA, one member selected by the Executive Board and approved by the Superintendent/designee will participate on the School Calendar Committee, Insurance Committee, Academic Advisory Committee, and Facilities Committee without additional compensation.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJP 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE VI - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

### A. Definitions

1. A "grievance procedure" is a method by which a member can express a complaint, problem or dispute without fear of reprisal and obtain a fair hearing at progressively higher levels. Said procedure shall provide democratic interpretation and application of personnel policies and practices.
2. A "grievance" is defined as a complaint alleging a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the Negotiated Agreement.
3. A "grievant" shall be defined as a member, group of members or the Association who allege to have a grievance. Grievances must identify each member and/or group alleged to have been harmed by the action(s) being grieved. The grievant may be accompanied at all hearings or meetings by an Association representative of his/her choice.
4. A "day" in this article shall mean a calendar day on which the central office is open exclusive of recognized state and/or federal holidays and Winter and Spring recess. The number of days indicated at each level shall be considered as maximum and shall be adhered to in expediting the procedure. Time limits may be extended only by mutual agreement of all parties concerned.
5. "Immediate Supervisor" - The immediate supervisor is the building principal or the Director of Transportation if the member is assigned to Transportation.
6. No remedy to a grievance may be executed that is not approved by the Association.
7. Reprisal - No censure or other adverse action shall be taken against any member participating in the grievance procedure.

### B. Purpose

1. The primary purpose of this procedure shall be to obtain at the lowest level and in the shortest period of time, equitable solutions to grievances.
2. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the individual rights of a member having a complaint or problem to discuss the matter informally with members of the administration through normal channels of communication, prior to the informal step of the grievance procedure occurring without intervention and/or consultation of the Association, provided the adjustment is not inconsistent with terms, conditions, and

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

requirements of the Negotiated Agreement.

3. A grievant shall initiate action within thirty (30) days of the event or condition upon which the grievance is based, or within thirty (30) days of the date on which the member(s), and/or Association learned of, or reasonably could have been expected to have knowledge of, the event or condition upon which the grievance is based, or no later than thirty (30) days following the most recent date on which a long-term and continuing event or condition giving rise to the grievance is deemed to have occurred or existed. Failure to file a timely grievance at the initial or subsequent step shall constitute a waiver of the right to any further action under this procedure.

### C. Procedure

#### 1. ~~Level One~~ - Informal

Within thirty (30) days of an event or condition that a ~~grievant-member~~ considers a ~~grievance concern~~, the ~~grievant-member~~ shall discuss the ~~grievance concern~~ with the immediate supervisor. The ~~grievant-member~~ may do this alone or with an Association representative. ~~Level One Prior to the discussion the informal step~~ shall be accomplished when the ~~grievant member~~ submits the ~~concern in writing~~ Grievance Report Form, Addendum A, Level One, to the ~~immediate~~ Supervisor, ~~prior to the discussion~~. The ~~immediate~~ Supervisor shall provide ~~his/her disposition a response~~ to the ~~grievant-member in writing~~ within ten (10) days of the discussion.

#### 2. ~~Level Two~~ - Immediate Supervisor

If the ~~grievance concern~~ is not resolved it may be pursued further by submitting the Grievance Report Form, Level ~~Two~~One, to the immediate supervisor by the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day after ~~receipt of the written notice response to the concern in the informal step of the Level One disposition~~. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the Level ~~Two~~One Grievance Report Form, the immediate supervisor shall schedule and meet with the grievant. The grievant(s) shall be represented at this meeting. The immediate supervisor shall take action on the written grievance within ten (10) days after such meeting. The grievant may choose to skip Level One of the procedure and proceed to Level Two of the procedure by following the steps defined below.

#### 3. ~~Level Three~~ - Superintendent

If the grievant is dissatisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level ~~Two~~One or has chosen to proceed directly to Level Two, the grievant shall complete the Grievance Report Form, Level ~~Three~~Two, and submit it to the



T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

Superintendent/~~or his/her~~ designee within ten (10) days of receipt of the written Informal response or disposition at Level ~~Two~~One. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the Level ~~Three~~Two Grievance Report Form, the Superintendent/~~or his/her~~ designee shall meet with the grievant and their Association representative. The Superintendent/~~or his/her~~ designee shall execute a written disposition of the grievance within ten (10) days after the meeting.

4. Level Three – Mediation

If the grievance is not resolved at Level Two, the grievant may request to take the grievance to FMCS Mediation. The mediation request shall be filed with the District office no later than ten (10) days following receipt of the Level Two disposition. The parties will first attempt to agree on an FMCS Mediator. If unable to agree on a mediator, the Union will request FMCS to appoint a mediator. The mediator will conduct mediation in accordance with FMCS procedures.

5. Level Four - Arbitration

If the grievant-grievance is not resolved through mediation is dissatisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Three, of if the Board fails to file a timely response within the time lines specified herein, the grievant shall notify the Superintendent of their intent to proceed to arbitration by completing the Grievance Report Form, Addendum A, Level Four, file an "arbitration demand" with the tribunal administrator of the appropriate office of the American Arbitration Association (AAA), and provide a copy of such demand to the Superintendent within ten (10) days ~~of~~after the conclusion of mediation receipt of the Level Three disposition.

- a. Selection of the Arbitrator: The Arbitrator shall be selected from a list supplied by the American Arbitration Association (AAA). All procedures relative to the arbitration shall be according to the voluntary rules and regulations of the AAA.
- b. Authority of the Arbitrator: The Arbitrator shall have no authority to issue any award contrary to the provisions of this Negotiated Agreement or the laws and regulations governing the operation of public schools in the State of Ohio.
- c. Decision of the Arbitrator: The decision of the Arbitrator shall be binding upon all parties and shall be final.
- d. Costs of the Arbitration: The costs of the arbitration hearing shall be borne entirely by the party designated by the Arbitrator as the "loser" of the grievance.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

**56.** A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without prejudice.

"Without Prejudice" Defined – A grievance may be withdrawn at any time and shall constitute final resolution of the specific grievance, but such withdrawal does not constitute agreement with the Board's position or preclude the Association from filing another grievance concerning the same provision of the Negotiated Agreement in the future.

**67.** If the Board, named herein to administer this grievance procedure, should fail to answer any grievance within the time limits established, then the grievance shall be advanced to the next step. Any grievance not referred to the next step, within the timelines specified herein, by the grievant will be considered a termination of the grievance.

7. Copies of all written decisions of grievances shall be sent to all parties involved, the Association President, the grievant and the appropriate administrator.

8. Forms for processing grievances shall be found in Addendum A, Grievance Report Form.

9. Record Keeping - Grievances and all related correspondence and documentation will be retained separately from a grievant's personnel file. Access shall be made by mutual consent of the Superintendent or his/her designee and the President of the Association, or if disclosure is required by law.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE VIII – DUES DEDUCTION

### A. Dues Deduction

1. The Board agrees to deduct from the salaries of members, dues and assessments for the Association and/or any combination of such organizations, as said members may individually and voluntarily authorize the Board to deduct, and to transmit the monies promptly to such organization or organizations. Members shall authorize deductions in writing utilizing the forms provided by the Association for such purposes. Members who wish to discontinue payroll deductions shall notify the Association in writing and the Association shall transmit the request to the Board by October 1. In the event an employee severs employment or cancels membership outside of the cancellation period defined in this Contract, the District Treasurer shall collect any amount owed to the Board and then deduct all owed and remaining bargaining unit dues from the employee's next check, immediately following such notification. In the event that the next check is not sufficient to cover all remaining dues, the Board shall not have any further requirement to recover such fees.
2. The Association agrees to indemnify the Board for any cost and/or liability incurred as a result of the implementation and enforcement of paragraph 1 above provided that:
  - a. The Board shall give written notice within ten (10) days of receipt of a claim made or action filed against the employer by a member of the bargaining unit for which indemnification may be claimed;
  - b. The Association shall reserve the right to designate counsel to represent and defend the Board;
  - c. The Board agrees to (1) give full and complete cooperation and assistance to the Association and its counsel at all levels of the proceeding, (2) permit the Association or its affiliates to intervene as a party if it so desires, and/or (3) to not oppose the Association or its affiliates' application to file briefs *amicus curiae* in the action;
  - d. The action brought against the Board must be a direct consequence of the Board's good faith compliance with the dues deduction provision of the Negotiated Agreement herein; however, there shall be no indemnification of the Board if the Board intentionally or willfully fails to apply (except due to court order) or misapplies such provision herein.
3. The Association will certify to the Board, through its Treasurer, in writing, the current amount of its membership dues by October 1 of each year.



T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

4. Deductions referred to in Section 1 above will be made in equal installments over a twelve-month pay period. The Board will not be required to honor for any month's deduction any authorizations that are delivered to it later than one (1) week prior to the distribution of the payroll from which deductions are to be made.

## **B. Association Membership**

Association membership is annual with the membership year being September 1 through August 31. Once a member enrolls such membership shall be continuous thereafter for each subsequent membership year unless the individual cancels their membership.

## **C. Membership Cancellation**

Any individual who wishes to cancel their membership ~~must~~should notify the Association Treasurer and Association President in writing between August 1 and August 31. A member may cancel their membership outside the aforementioned cancellation period but shall be responsible for all remaining dues and assessments of the current membership year and by such cancellation acknowledges that he/she is foregoing any rights specifically reserved to members of the Association.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE IX - CONDITIONS OF WORK

### A. Days and Hours of Work

Members shall be paid for all hours actually worked, except as specifically provided below:

1. A calamity day is a school day when school is closed or delayed due to epidemic, foul weather, or other calamity.
2. When schools are closed due to a calamity day and the member is required by her/his supervisor to work, that member will be given a choice of compensatory time or payment. Compensatory time will be given on a per hour worked basis, one and one-half (1-1/2) hours of compensatory time for one (1) hour of work. Payment shall be made at the member's regular rate of pay with overtime payment if appropriate. Records will be kept by the building principal. Compensatory time may be taken at any time during the year with prior approval of the member's immediate supervisor.
3. Members will not be compensated for working on make-up calamity days. Section 4 of this Article is not applicable to make-up calamity days.
4. When schools are closed due to epidemic, or other calamity, employees shall be paid at the regular rate of pay and not have sick leave, personal leave, or vacation charged against their accounts. Up to five (5) calamity days may be granted each year that do not have to be made up. If more than five (5) calamity days are used, all days in excess of the first five (5) will be made up, without additional compensation, with either student instructional days and/or professional development days, unless the Board approves a shorter minimum school year.
5. On days when the start of the school day is delayed due to inclement weather, members are normally expected to report on the same schedule as the professional teaching staff.

If there is an exception and a member is required to report earlier he/she will be paid time and one-half for the time worked in addition to regular pay.

### B. Temporary Assignments

When a member is assigned to work in a higher classification for more than five (5) consecutive days in the same assignment, she/he shall be paid at the rate specified in the higher salary schedule at the same step she/he is currently working in, for the remainder of such assignment as well as receive retroactive pay for the first five days at the higher classification rate.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

A member assigned to a lower classification will be paid her/his regular hourly rate for the period of such assignment.

### **C. Overtime**

1. One and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular hourly rate shall be paid for all hours actually worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week. The forty (40) hours shall include the occurrence of days in excess of the normally paid work week. Overtime shall be paid in excess of the regular workweek when a member is on assault leave, professional leave, jury duty or calamity day. No overtime shall be paid in excess of the regular work week when a member is on vacation, personal leave, parental leave, association leave, or sick leave.
2. All overtime shall be required by and approved in advance by the employee's supervisor and shall be paid as emphasized in C(1).
3. Double the employee's regular hourly rate shall be paid for work performed on Sundays and holidays if required by the member's supervisor.
4. In lieu of overtime pay, an employee may choose to earn comp time at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) hours for every hour worked in excess of forty hours per work week. Pre-approved work performed on Sundays or holidays will earn comp time at the rate of two (2) hours for every hour worked. Comp time may be accumulated up to forty (40) hours and must be used by June 30th of each year. Any unused comp time balance as of June 30 will be cashed out.
5. A member who volunteers to engage in the overnight supervision of pupils as part of a co-curricular assignment and who is not otherwise compensated for the activity will be paid one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) per day.

### **D. Classification Change**

The Board has the discretion to grant up to the same number of steps on the salary schedule in the new classification as the member held in the previous classification if no loss of pay occurs.

### **E. Substitute Pay**

The Board agrees to pay regular employees who are substituting in members positions during times other than their regularly assigned time (i.e., summer) at their current, pro-rated rate of pay for all work which is being performed for the term of the assignment. A non-bargaining unit member substitute shall be paid at the current Board approved substitute pay scale. After one hundred twenty (120)

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

days in the same position, the substitute would become a member of the bargaining unit and be placed at Step 0 on the pay classification under which he/she is working.

#### **F. Experience Credit**

A maximum of ten (10) years of experience may be granted to new members for experience within the immediately preceding ten (10) year period prior to beginning work with the Big Walnut Local School District.

#### **G. Service Credit**

The Board agrees that one hundred and twenty (120) work days in a classification including substitute days within a work year (July 1-June 30) shall constitute service credit to advance to the next step on the pay schedule in that classification the following year. Unpaid approved leaves of absence of one hundred twenty-one (121) days or more shall not be counted toward continuous service time.

#### **H. Labor/Management Committee**

The parties agree that the purpose of the Labor/Management Committee (LMC) is to confer on matters dealing with the overall operation of the school as it pertains to support staff, and to discuss concerns/problems encountered in the workplace not covered by this Negotiated Agreement.

Unless mutually agreed upon otherwise, the following conditions apply to LMC meetings. The LMC shall meet monthly upon request by either party. ~~At the beginning of each school year the committee will meet and set dates for the remainder of the year. The dates may be rearranged and or postponed by mutual agreement. However, there shall be no less than three (3) meetings during the school year.~~ Arrangements for the meeting and an agenda ~~shall~~ may be agreed upon and distributed to committee members ~~at least three (3) school days~~ before the meeting takes place. Either party may request the assistance of federal mediation services during the normal LMC meetings. Notice of such request must be made at the same time as the initial meeting request.

Representatives to the LMC shall be two (2) from the Association and up to two (2) from the Administration/Board. Members shall be appointed by the Association President and Superintendent/designee respectively.

When new members are placed on the LMC, the parties will arrange a training session in collaborative decision-making, if desired, which will be provided by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) and/or any other available provider.

Each building representative and building principal may meet monthly by request

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

of either party to discuss any outstanding issues.

#### **I. Background Checks**

Once a member has been hired, any additional background checks required of members by state and/or federal law shall be paid for by the Board. If possible the Board will pay directly to the appropriate agency. If it is not possible to pay the agency directly, the Board shall reimburse the employee. The employee shall provide a receipt to the Treasurer for reimbursement.

#### **J. ~~Special Recess Days~~/In-service/Waiver Training Days**

If a member is not scheduled to work on a ~~special recess day~~, waiver or in-service training day and training is made available on that day which is pertinent to the member's work assignment, the member may request, or be requested, to attend the training and be paid for the hours in attendance. Requests shall be submitted to, and/or originate from, the building principal, with the ability to appeal the principal's decisions (or request) to the Superintendent.

#### **K. Administering of Medication**

If a member is required to administer any medicines/medications or perform and/or assist in any medical procedures/treatments, he/she shall be properly trained on a yearly basis by a medical professional. Under direction of the Superintendent, access to consultant health services will be available on an ongoing basis, upon request by the member or administration. If a member is uncomfortable with administering medication or performing/assisting in medical procedures, the member may request that the building administration solicit other volunteers. Volunteers shall be sought before members are required to administer medications or procedures under this Section.

#### **L. Training**

The District will provide members equipment necessary to do the job. The District shall provide adequate training on the use of new equipment. Every reasonable attempt will be made for members to have input as to the selection and amount of equipment purchased. Upon mutual agreement of the member and the Immediate Supervisor or designee, the Board shall provide group training and/or pay for the member's training in areas that are related to the member's assignment or are a benefit to the Big Walnut Local Schools. Examples of applicable training include, but are not limited to, CPR, CPI, TCI (Therapeutic Crisis Intervention), communicable diseases classes, software, excel and first aid.

Members will be provided with training requirements to comply with any state



T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

regulations or District needs on an annual basis. Time within the member work day will be provided for such trainings. If time outside of the work day is required by the administrator, the member shall complete a timesheet to be compensated at the member's hourly rate of pay. Members shall complete all required training within the time provided by the administration.

**M. Secure Storage Space**

The District shall provide members with an area to store and lock personal belongings.

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board  
responsibility.

#### **E. Death in the Immediate Family**

In addition to those individuals listed in Section (D) above, for purposes of this section, the immediate family shall be defined as niece, nephew, aunt, uncle, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, any person standing in the place of any of the foregoing, and any person residing in the home of the employee for whose care the employee has responsibility.

In the event of death in the immediate family a member may use up to three (3) consecutive sick leave days unless special circumstances (such as travel distance or funeral responsibilities) require additional days.

#### **F. Sick Leave Advancement**

On September 15 of each school year, members who have accumulated sick leave of less than five (5) days shall be advanced that number of days necessary to bring the accumulation to five (5) days. These advanced days shall be charged against the sick leave the employee subsequently accumulates under this Article. If an employee leaves the District prior to all advanced sick leave days having been repaid, the dollar value of such days shall be subtracted from the employee's final paycheck, and if any balance is still due to the District the employee shall pay such balance to the District.

#### **G. Emergency Circumstances**

For emergencies or extraordinary circumstances, the Superintendent may grant sick leave above the inclusions of this policy. The member shall state in writing the details of the case.

#### **H. Attendance Incentive**

For the purpose of the attendance incentive, only sick leave (excluding use of sick leave for bereavement) is counted as time missed. Professional leave, vacation, donation of sick leave, personal leave, use of sick time for bereavement purposes, or any absence for training purposes is not considered an absence for the purpose of determining the attendance incentive. A semi-annual attendance payment shall be earned per the following and paid on February 28 and July 30. The semi-annual time frame shall be calculated according to the semesters identified on the school district's calendar.

<u>Time Missed</u>	<u>Incentive</u>
Less than 1 day	\$600.00
1 day but no more than 2 days	\$450.00

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

**I. Sick Leave Bank**

1. The Sick Leave Bank Committee will activate a sick leave bank on an "as needed" basis. The Treasurer will be notified at least two pay dates prior to being requested to pay additional sick leave to a member utilizing the sick leave bank. No more than twenty (20) days of sick leave may be awarded a member at any one time, with provision that a member may request a hearing for additional days. The Association leadership shall be responsible for the solicitation and collection of the donated days and providing the information to the District Treasurer. If necessary, members shall be permitted time during the school day to perform these activities. Individual contributions may be up to a maximum of five (5) days per request.

During the term of the Agreement, the parties agree that the operation of the sick leave bank may be varied by written Memorandum of Understanding signed by the President of the Association and the Superintendent or his/her designee. The Sick Leave Bank Committee will annually review the operation of the sick leave bank during each year of this Agreement.

**2. Participation in Sick Leave Bank Benefits**

Members are eligible for a donation of sick leave if all of the following conditions have been satisfied:

- a. The member has exhausted his or her accumulated and unused sick leave together with any advancement of sick leave as defined in Article XIII (F).
- b. The member has exhausted any accumulated and unused personal leave.
- c. The member is not eligible for disability retirement under the regulations of the School Employees Retirement System.
- ed. The member is suffering from serious personal illness, or injury, or requires additional sick leave due to the serious health impairment of family member (as defined in Article XIII (D)) of a sufficiently severe nature as to warrant extraordinary relief as determined by the Sick Leave Bank Committee and otherwise approved as provided in this Section.

A member who has exhausted a donation of sick leave may request and receive an additional loan of sick leave days from the sick leave bank upon the approval of the Sick Leave Bank Committee.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

3. Application for Sick Leave Bank Benefits

Qualified members may apply for a donation from the sick leave bank. Application shall be made to the Sick Leave Bank Committee. The Sick Leave Bank Committee may either approve the recommendation as submitted, approve a fewer number of days or reject the application.

No grievance may be brought challenging any action of the Bank Committee, the Superintendent or his/her designee granting, modifying or denying any request for the advancement of sick leave days under this section.

4. Sick Leave Bank Committee

The Sick Leave Bank Committee shall consist of two Association members designated by the President of the Association and two representatives appointed by the Superintendent plus the Superintendent or his/her designee. The Bank Committee shall consider individual requests for the donation of sick leave from the sick leave bank. It shall include a determination of whether or not the criteria for the donation of sick leave set forth in the Section have been satisfied. A separate Bank Committee may be designated for each individual request, as determined by the Superintendent and Association President.

**J. Illness Disability Leave**

Upon written request, accompanied by a written statement of support from his/her physician, a member shall be granted a leave of absence, without pay, for a period not to exceed two (2) consecutive school years, for personal illness or disability. Such leave may be extended at the discretion of the Board. Further, however, the Board may require, and/or shall support, the member's application for "Disability Retirement Status" with the State Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS) prior to, and as a condition of, the granting of such leave.

The Board and the Association, on its own behalf and on behalf of members of the bargaining unit each reserve any and all rights that they are provided under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA") 29 USC Sections 2601 through and including 2654. The Board may designate any paid sick leave or other qualified leave provided in this agreement as FMLA leave and otherwise exercise such rights as it may have under the FMLA and Regulations enacted there under with respect to such leave.<sup>1</sup>

---

<sup>1</sup> The FMLA permits qualified employees to receive up to twelve weeks of unpaid leave per year for personal or family medical reasons. FMLA leave is unpaid leave except that the Board must, during the period of the leave, continue to pay the same contribution to the staff member's health insurance contributions as was paid during the time of the staff member's active employment.



T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

**K. Leave of Absence**

1. Upon written request of a member who has completed five (5) or more school years with the Big Walnut Local School District, the Board shall grant a leave of absence, without pay, for a period of not more than one (1) school year and not less than thirty (30) consecutive work days, for educational, professional, maternity or compelling personal, family or emergency reasons, provided that a qualified replacement may be employed to fill the vacancy thereby created. Leaves of absence will not be granted for recreational or vacation purposes, or for the purpose of seeking or taking other employment. No more than five percent (5%) of the members of the bargaining unit shall be granted such leave concurrently. Leave taken under this provision shall only occur one time per school year. Extenuating circumstances may be considered by the Superintendent of his/her designee.
2. Upon the written request of a member who has completed less than five (5) school years with the Big Walnut Local School District, the Board may grant the leave of absence without pay.
3. The term of the leave shall be scheduled, to the extent possible, to cause the least disruption to the educational program. The member shall advise the Board of the commencement of the leave as far in advance as possible. Unless otherwise specified, all leaves will terminate at the beginning of the next school year. Any member on leave of absence must notify the Board by May 1 of his/her intent to either return or not return to service at the beginning of the next school year. Failure to notify of intent to return will be deemed abandonment of employment and such position will be considered open.
4. No member shall return to service prior to the expiration date of such leave without the approval of the Superintendent. Any member who does not return to service at the stated termination date of such leave shall be deemed as having abandoned his/her contract and all rights and privileges of employment shall thereupon be extinguished.
5. Upon return from leave, a member will be given an assignment consistent with his/her job classification.

**L. Conditions for Granting a Leave of Absence**

Upon the granting of leave as set forth in subsection J and K above, the following conditions shall be applied:

1. The member will receive information on COBRA and the portability of any supplemental life insurance.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

2. The premium of any such group insurance plan shall be paid entirely by the member.
3. The accumulated and unused sick leave to the credit of the member shall be restored upon the member's return to active service.

#### **M. Professional Leave**

Upon approval of the building Administrator, professional leave shall be granted for the purpose of professional development activities that will benefit the District. Any member desiring such leave shall submit a written request to the Building Administrator no later than three (3) days prior to the date(s) of the leave. This notification may be waived by the Building Administrator in cases of emergency.

Members shall receive reimbursement for necessary and actual expenses incurred for such leave or meetings or functions, in an amount not to exceed one hundred sixty-five dollars (\$165) per member for registration, lodging, and/or meals. Additional expenses may be reimbursed on approval of the Building Administrator.

Mileage will be reimbursed at the then-current IRS approved mileage expense deduction rate.

Itemized bills shall be submitted for reimbursement on appropriate forms. (Actual hotel receipts and a daily tabulation for meal expenses must be attached.)

#### **N. Association Leave**

Up to two (2) delegates representing the Big Walnut Professional Support Staff Association shall be granted leave with pay to attend meetings of the OEA Representative Assembly. Such leave shall not exceed two (2) days per elected delegate in a school year. Any expense incurred by such delegate(s) shall not be the obligation of the Board of Education.

In addition, to the two (2) days of delegate leave, the Association President or designee may use up to three (3) additional days of professional leave for Association purposes.

#### **O. Parental Leave**

Upon written request, a member shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for a period not to exceed five (5) weekdays immediately after the birth of a child. If both parents are employed by the Big Walnut Board of Education, only one (1) such parent shall be eligible for leave under this provision.

#### **P. Jury Duty - Compulsory Court Appearances**

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

A member, upon written request to the Superintendent, shall be granted leave for the number of days or partial days needed to accept and serve on jury duty. The member shall receive his/her normal pay during jury service. A leave form shall be submitted when the member becomes aware of the need to use Jury Duty Leave. The employee may also retain all compensation and expenses received from serving as a juror.

A member who is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a school/business/activity case shall be granted paid leave for the number of days or partial days needed to give testimony. A written request shall be submitted to the member's immediate supervisor as soon as the need for such leave is known.

#### **Q. Assault Leave**

"Assault" means the causing of physical harm to a member when such member charges such person with an Assault offense prohibited under Chapter 2903 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Any member who is absent due to physical injuries resulting from an assault received in the course of, and arising out of such member's employment, may use assault leave in lieu of sick leave upon approval by the Superintendent subject only to the limitations prescribed in this section:

1. The member's conduct was within the bounds of generally accepted standards of professional conduct;
2. The building, or other appropriate administrator, was notified of the incident as soon as possible following its occurrence;
3. The member submits to the Superintendent a form prescribed by the Board justifying the use of assault leave;
4. The member provides a physician's statement describing the nature and duration of the physical disability resulting from the assault and the necessity of absence from regular employment.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

The total number of days of paid leave provided under this section shall not exceed thirty (30). Payment under this section of the Agreement shall constitute the member's entire compensation from the Board during the period of physical disability covered by this section and shall be in lieu of any payments under Chapter 4123 of the Ohio Revised Code.

The employment of any member who falsifies his/her signed statement or a physician's certificate may be terminated.

M

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE XV - SCHOOL CALENDAR/VACATION/WORK WEEK

### A. Work Week

Under normal circumstances, the work week shall consist of five (5) consecutive days Monday through Friday, for all hours scheduled by the Board. If abnormal circumstances exist due to Acts of God, disaster, or calamity, the Board may be required to adjust the work week. This Article shall not restrict the extension of the regular work day or work week on an overtime basis when such is necessary to carry on the business of the school District in accordance with provisions of Article IX, Overtime.

For full-time members, the work day shall be eight (8) hours for those in the General Secretary and Building Secretary classifications. The work day for full-time assistants shall be seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours.

Any BWPSSA staff hired to work as teaching assistants for the preschool program who work a minimum of four days per week will be considered full-time for all purposes of employment and benefits.

### B. Annual Work Schedule

1. The annual work schedules for members shall be as follows:

- |    |                   |                       |
|----|-------------------|-----------------------|
| a. | Twelve (12) month | 260 days              |
| b. | Eleven (11) month | 220 days              |
| c. | Ten (10) month    | 210 days              |
| d. | Nine (9) month    | 190 days or 152 days. |

2. For nine, ten and eleven month employees, up to five (5) additional days of work may be scheduled prior to or following the annual work schedule at the discretion of the member and the building principal. Between six (6) and ten (10) days may be scheduled by the principal and the member and the Superintendent. Beyond a total of 10 additional days, Board approval is necessary. Each day shall be paid based on the assigned classification per Article XXV, Salary.



T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

**C. Vacation**

1. Twelve (12) month members shall earn vacation under the following schedule:

0-11 months	One (1) day per month up to ten (10) days prior to June 30
1-5 years	Ten (10) days per year <u>– accrued at 0.83 days per month</u>
6-9 years	Fifteen (15) days per year <u>– accrued at 1.25 days per month</u>
10-15 years	Seventeen (17) days per year <u>– accrued at 1.41 days per month</u>
16-20 years	Twenty (20) days per year <u>– accrued at 1.66 days per month</u>
21-24 years	Twenty-two (22) days per year <u>– accrued at 1.83 days per month</u>
25 years/above	Twenty-five (25) days per year <u>– accrued at 2.08 days per month</u>

2. Members shall be permitted to sell up to ten (10) days of earned, but unused vacation time yearly. Members may carry over up to five (5) days per year. After the member's request to sell vacation time is submitted to the Superintendent, it will be paid during the next pay period.

Earned, but unused vacation time for the year preceding the date of separation from the District will be paid to the member at the time of separation.

3. Twelve (12) month members' vacations are to be taken during the period of July 1 through June 30. The number of days allowed when school is in session may be limited and all vacation requests must be approved in advance by the Supervisor.
4. Vacation may be used in one-half (1/2) day increments.

**D. Severance Payment**

~~Members, at their option and at the time of retirement, may take their accumulated severance in either (1) a one-time, lump-sum payment, or (2) one-half (1/2) of their severance in the year of their retirement and one-half (1/2) in the next tax year.~~

**ED. Holidays**

1. Members will have the following paid holidays.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

**260-day Members**

1. Labor Day
2. Thanksgiving Day
3. Day after Thanksgiving
4. Day before Christmas
5. Christmas
6. New Year's Eve
7. New Year's Day
8. Martin Luther King Day
9. Good Friday
10. Monday after Easter if part of the regular Spring Break week
11. Presidents' Day
12. Memorial Day
13. Juneteenth
14. Independence Day.

**220-or-less-day Members**

1. Labor Day
2. Thanksgiving Day
3. Day after Thanksgiving
4. Day before Christmas
5. Christmas Day
6. New Year's Day
7. Martin Luther King Day
8. Good Friday
9. Monday after Easter if part of the regular Spring Break week
10. Presidents' Day
11. Memorial Day (if it falls within the employee's work calendar).

**FE. Breaks**

Breaks shall be mutually agreed upon in good faith by the member and her/his immediate supervisor.

**GF. Lunch Periods**

All members regularly scheduled to work five (5) or more hours per day shall be guaranteed an uninterrupted, duty-free lunch period of not less than thirty (30) consecutive minutes. A member shall have the option to leave the building provided he/she returns to his/her assignment promptly at the end of the established lunch period. If the member wishes to leave the building, she/he should notify her/his supervisor or designee.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE XVII - TERMINATION OR DISCIPLINE

- A. The Board sets forth the following disciplinary procedure to insure the fair, timely and equitable treatment of members. Each member may have a member of the Association present at any level of these procedures. This procedure is grievable under Article VI of this Agreement.

The Superintendent/supervisor shall investigate the incident prior to beginning any action. Discipline shall be for just cause.

After the investigation noted above, the Superintendent/supervisor shall determine the proper level of discipline to be administered.

1. Level One

The Supervisor shall give a verbal reprimand and counseling to the member to prevent future occurrences.

2. Level Two

A written reprimand shall be sent through the school mail to the member. The action of the Supervisor may be appealed to the Superintendent. There shall be no appeal from the Superintendent.

3. Level Three

The Superintendent shall recommend the suspension of a member without pay. The Superintendent shall review and/or expand the investigation of the incident and meet with the member. Within five (5) working days of the conference, the Superintendent will render a decision. This decision shall be sent in writing to the member by receipted written correspondence. If the Superintendent recommends suspension, it must be reasonably related to the seriousness of the employee's proven offense and the employee's work record.

4. Level Four

The Superintendent shall recommend the termination of the member's contract. The Superintendent shall review and/or expand the investigation of the incident and meet with the member. Within five (5) working days of the conference, the Superintendent will render a decision in writing.

If the Superintendent recommends a member's termination to the Board, the Board shall act upon the recommendation at its next regularly

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

scheduled meeting. The member may request, in writing through the Superintendent, a hearing before the Board. Said hearing shall be held in Executive Session. The Board shall render a decision in writing within five (5) working days of the hearing. This decision shall be sent to the member by receipted written correspondence.

5. Binding Arbitration

A member's suspension of more than three (3) days without compensation and/or termination may be appealed to Binding Arbitration.

- B. Disciplinary actions after three (3) years shall not be considered for purposes of progressive discipline if no other instances have occurred.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE XXIII - INSURANCE

- A. For full-time members, the Board of Education will pay eighty-five percent (85%) of the Board approved Hospitalization/Major Medical for family or single coverage for members. The member will pay fifteen percent (15%) of the insurance premium for single or family coverage. ~~Effective January 1, 2020, the plan will be a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) with deductibles set at the IRS minimum levels (\$1,400/\$2,800 for individuals and families, respectively for the 2020 calendar year) and will index to meet the IRS requirements for a HDHP. A summary of the Plan Document shall be included as a Summary of Benefits in Addendum B made available to all members electronically.~~ Through the life of this Agreement, the Board may offer additional plan options for health insurance. However, any change in benefits within the main health insurance plan shall be made by mutual agreement between the Board and the Association.
- B. As of January 1, 2014, the per-pay contribution of a member shall not increase more than an additional ten dollars (\$10.00) per pay for single coverage and twenty dollars (\$20.00) per pay for family coverage per year.
- C. The Board will pay the premium for a thirty thousand dollar (\$30,000) term life insurance policy for each member.
- D. The Board shall pay on behalf of all members seventy-five percent (75%) per month for the Group Dental Plan premiums. The member shall pay twenty-five percent (25%).
- E. The Board shall have sole authority to negotiate terms and conditions of insurance benefits and premiums with, and to select carriers of, group insurance plans; and the Board may change such carriers at any time it deems such change will accrue to the financial benefit of either the Board or members, provided that such change(s) in carriers will not result in any reduction in, or loss of, benefits to members which they enjoy now or may enjoy under any succeeding benefit plan. Any changes in benefits shall be made by mutual agreement between the Board and the Association. The Association shall be notified thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any proposed change in carrier(s).
- F. If the member elects not to participate in the District's insurance plan, upon proof of other insurance coverage the member shall receive an annual opt-out incentive of \$1,500.00 during each year the member elects to not participate in the insurance plan. Elections are made on a yearly basis. This payment will be paid to the member in a separate check at the end of the fiscal year. If both spouses are employed by the District, and one of them takes the District health insurance, then neither will be eligible for this compensation.



T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

- G. The Board shall establish a 125 flex-spending account for each member. The account shall be for the reimbursement of qualifying medical/dental and/or vision expenses. Members may elect to contribute money to the 125 flex-spending account.
- H. The Board will provide a Health Savings Account for all covered employees. No Board contribution for this account will be provided.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE XXIV - SALARY

A. Members shall be paid the following based on their classification and experience.

Pay increases shall be figured on the base pay for each classification at 3.0% for 2019-2020, retroactive payment back to beginning of contract year, paid within three (3) pay periods after Association ratifies and Board approval; 3.0% for 2020-2021. Members shall move steps if scheduled to do so.

B. All members' wages shall be calculated based on twenty-four (24) equal pay periods. The pay dates for all periods shall be the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) and thirtieth (30<sup>th</sup>) by direct deposit for all members. Effective July 1, 2012 all paychecks will be electronically deposited into an account designated by the member and each member will receive notification of his/her pay by email.

C. When a pay date falls on any day other than a normal working day, e.g., a weekend or a holiday, the pay date shall be the preceding normal work day, e.g., Friday or the last day before a holiday.

1. The Board agrees to "pick up" using the salary reduction method of contributions to the School Employees Retirement System (SERS) paid on behalf of members at no cost to the Board, by an amount equal to the amount "picked up" by the Board for the purposes of determining State and Federal income taxes only.
2. Each member will be responsible for compliance with the Internal Revenue Service salary exclusion allowance regulations with respect to the Board's "pick up" in combination with any other tax deferred compensation.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

- D. Any member required to use his/her own vehicle to perform assigned duties for the District shall be paid at the current IRS rate per mile for reimbursement by the Board.

**E. Longevity Payments**

Effective July 1, 2014, members at step twenty-one (21) of the salary schedule shall receive two annual longevity payments of \$400.00.

The longevity payments shall be made in two (2) equal installments on the last paycheck in June and the first paycheck in December. Only members employed for a six (6) month period prior to each installment shall be eligible for the longevity pay.

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

2019-2020 Salary Schedule			
STEP	GENERAL SECRETARY/ OFFICE ASSISTANT	TEACHING ASSISTANT	BUILDING SECRETARY
0	\$15.69	\$16.04	\$16.47
1	\$15.97	\$16.30	\$16.76
2	\$16.22	\$16.56	\$17.02
3	\$16.50	\$16.84	\$17.31
4	\$16.78	\$17.11	\$17.78
5	\$17.08	\$17.42	\$18.23
6	\$17.39	\$17.73	\$18.70
7	\$17.73	\$18.07	\$19.16
8	\$18.07	\$18.40	\$19.62
9	\$18.40	\$18.74	\$20.07
10	\$18.75	\$19.09	\$20.55
11	\$19.21	\$19.53	\$21.00
12	\$19.70	\$20.02	\$21.47
13	\$20.26	\$20.58	\$22.17
14	\$20.84	\$21.18	\$22.87
15	\$21.41	\$21.74	\$23.56
16	\$21.70	\$22.01	\$23.84
17	\$21.82	\$22.13	\$24.11
18	\$21.92	\$22.25	\$24.40
19	\$22.02	\$22.36	\$24.64
20	\$22.15	\$22.46	\$24.97

2020-2021 Salary Schedule			
STEP	GENERAL SECRETARY/ OFFICE ASSISTANT	TEACHING ASSISTANT	BUILDING SECRETARY
0	\$16.16	\$16.52	\$16.96
1	\$16.44	\$16.79	\$17.26
2	\$16.71	\$17.06	\$17.53
3	\$17.00	\$17.35	\$17.83
4	\$17.28	\$17.62	\$18.31
5	\$17.59	\$17.94	\$18.78
6	\$17.91	\$18.26	\$19.27
7	\$18.26	\$18.61	\$19.73
8	\$18.61	\$18.95	\$20.21
9	\$18.95	\$19.30	\$20.68
10	\$19.31	\$19.66	\$21.16
11	\$19.79	\$20.11	\$21.63
12	\$20.30	\$20.62	\$22.11
13	\$20.87	\$21.20	\$22.83
14	\$21.46	\$21.81	\$23.55
15	\$22.06	\$22.40	\$24.26
16	\$22.35	\$22.67	\$24.56
17	\$22.47	\$22.80	\$24.84
18	\$22.58	\$22.92	\$25.13
19	\$22.68	\$23.03	\$25.38
20	\$22.81	\$23.14	\$25.72

M

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JJB 4/29/22 Board

## ARTICLE XXV - SEVERANCE

A. Severance pay will be in accordance with the Board's policy as follows:

1. Five (5) years of consecutive employment service with the District is required for eligibility.
2. The rate of severance pay will be a maximum of one-fourth (1/4) of accrued days up to 240. Members who have accrued the maximum 240 sick leave days at the beginning of a school year can take up to fifteen (15) additional sick leave days per year that will not be charged against the original 240 days. Members taking sixteen (16) or more sick leave days shall have any sick leave days deducted from their original 240 days.
3. Payments under this Article shall be based on the member's regular daily rate of pay at the time of retirement.
4. In order to qualify for severance pay under this Article, written evidence from the member of the member's approval for retirement benefits from the School Employees Retirement System (SERS) must be received by the Superintendent or Treasurer within one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of separation of service from the District. Severance pay shall be made only once to any member and shall result in the cancellation of all remaining accumulated but unused sick leave.

### 5. Severance Payment

Members, at their option and at the time of retirement, may take their accumulated severance in either (1) a one-time, lump-sum payment, or (2) one-half (1/2) of their severance in the year of their retirement and one-half (1/2) in the next tax year.

An additional severance pay at the time of retirement, shall be made at the rate of one-half (1/2) of all accumulated and unused personal leave days, to a maximum of five (5) personal days which equals 2.5 days of severance pay.



T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_

BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22

Board

ADDENDUM - A

BIG WALNUT LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT  
**GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM**

**LEVEL I (INFORMAL)**

Date of Informal Discussion: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Grievant: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Immediate Supervisor: \_\_\_\_\_

Disposition by Immediate Supervisor: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Immediate Supervisor: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

**LEVEL II (IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR)**

Grievance # \_\_\_\_\_

Name of Grievant(s)/Association: \_\_\_\_\_

Building: \_\_\_\_\_

Assignment: \_\_\_\_\_

A. Date cause of grievance occurred: \_\_\_\_\_

B. 1. Statement of Grievance: (Concise statement of facts upon which grievance is based, including specific provisions of the Negotiated Agreement allegedly violated, misinterpreted or misapplied: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

B. 2. Relief Sought: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Grievant: \_\_\_\_\_

M

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JTB 4/29/22 Board

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM (Continued)

**LEVEL II - (IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR) (continued)**

C. Disposition by Immediate Supervisor: \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Immediate Supervisor: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

**LEVEL III (SUPERINTENDENT)**

A. Position of Grievant: \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

~~B. Relief Sought:~~ \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Grievant: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

~~B. Signature of Superintendent and/or Designee:~~ \_\_\_\_\_

C. Date Received by Superintendent or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_

D. Disposition by Superintendent or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Superintendent or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

T/A Reached

Initials/Date: \_\_\_\_\_ BWPSSA

Initials/Date: JSB 4/29/22 Board

**LEVEL III - Mediation**

Reason for Request of Mediation:

---

---

---

---

Signature of Grievant

Date of Request

Date of Scheduled Mediation:

**LEVEL IV (ARBITRATION) - Arbitration**

A. Position of Grievant (Notification of intent to proceed to arbitration): \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Grievant: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Superintendent or Designee: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

# NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT

between the

**BIG WALNUT PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT  
STAFF ASSOCIATION/OEA/NEA**

and the

**BIG WALNUT BOARD OF EDUCATION**

July 1, 2022

through

June 30, 2025

Jeremy J. Burkink 5/24/2022

Amanda Pyzanitis 5/24/22  
Kriste L. Martin 5-24-22

note  
written  
5-24-22  
H1 5/24/22

JJB 5/24/2022

## ARTICLE VII - PRINCIPAL'S ADVISORY COMMITTEE

### B. Committee Representation

~~Representatives will be selected by the BWPSSA Executive Board no later than September 30<sup>th</sup>. If a meeting occurs outside of the scheduled work day, members will be compensated at their hourly rate upon submission of a time sheet.~~

A member with at least one year of experience in the building will be appointed by the building principal to serve on the committee for a two-year term. Upon completion of the two-year term, a different member will be offered an opportunity by the building principal to serve on the committee for a two-year term. The building principal will send an annual request in writing to solicit interest from members. If after being solicited, no other member wants to serve on the committee, then the previous member may continue to serve another two-year term. The selected member will receive an annual \$300 stipend to be paid in July of each year.



## ARTICLE IX - CONDITIONS OF WORK

AI - 5-24.  
KLM

JJB 5/24/22

### K. Administering of Medication

If a member is required to administer any medicines/medications or perform and/or assist in any medical procedures/treatments, he/she shall be properly trained on a yearly basis by a medical professional. Under direction of the Superintendent, access to consultant health services will be available on an ongoing basis, upon request by the member or administration. Members who are required or requested to perform nursing duties or tasks that directly impact the student's health on an ongoing basis including, but not limited to, changing menstrual pads, diapering, changing soiled clothing, feeding, carb counting, or injecting medication shall receive a \$250 stipend per semester for such additional work to be paid in February and July. If a member is uncomfortable with administering medication or performing/assisting in medical procedures, the member may request that the building administration solicit other volunteers. Volunteers shall be sought before members are required to administer medications or procedures under this Section.

Al 5-24-26  
RPM  
JTB 5/24/26

## ARTICLE XIII – LEAVES

### H. Attendance Incentive

For the purpose of the attendance incentive, only sick leave (excluding use of sick leave for bereavement) is counted as time missed. Professional leave, vacation, donation of sick leave, personal leave, use of sick time for bereavement purposes, or any absence for training purposes is not considered an absence for the purpose of determining the attendance incentive. A semi-annual attendance payment shall be earned per the following and paid on February 28 and in July 30. The semi-annual time frame shall be calculated according to the semesters identified on the school district's calendar.

<u>Time Missed</u>	<u>Incentive</u>
<del>Less than 1 day</del> <u>One day or less</u>	<u>\$600.00</u>
<del>1 day but no more than 2 days</del>	
<u>More than one day, but no more than two days</u>	<u>\$450.00</u>

## ARTICLE XV - SCHOOL CALENDAR/VACATION/WORK WEEK

### A. Work Week

Under normal circumstances, the work week shall consist of five (5) consecutive days Monday through Friday, for all hours scheduled by the Board. If abnormal circumstances exist due to Acts of God, disaster, or calamity, the Board may be required to adjust the work week. This Article shall not restrict the extension of the regular work day or work week on an overtime basis when such is necessary to carry on the business of the school District in accordance with provisions of Article IX, Overtime.

For full-time members, the work day shall be eight (8) hours for those in the General Secretary and Building Secretary classifications. The work day for full-time assistants shall be seven and one-half (7-1/2) hours.

Any BWPSSA staff hired to work as teaching assistants for the preschool program who work a minimum of four days per week will be considered full-time for all purposes of employment and benefits. Additionally, any other member who works 30 hours or more per week shall be deemed a full-time employee for the purposes of the attendance incentive and longevity payment.

AT  
5/24/20  
KLR  
5-24

JJB 5/24/20

## ARTICLE XX - VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS

A1  
5/24/22  
KLM  
5-24-22  
JJB 5/24/22

### A. Posting Procedure

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall prepare and post electronically all known vacancies in bargaining unit member positions as they arise, unless the work no longer exists or is needed. A member may apply for a posted vacancy for which he/she is qualified within five (5) work days of the posting. Work days shall be defined as days that the central office is open. ~~After a position has been posted for at least five (5) days, all transfers and reassignments are completed, and/or it has been determined that no member has applied for and/or is qualified to fill the position external candidates will be considered.~~

1. The vacancy posting shall include all the qualifications sought to fill the position with a qualified member:
  - a. Job description
  - b. Job title
  - c. Required licenses and/or certificates
  - d. Procedures for applying for the vacancy
  - e. Any additional pertinent information
2. The most qualified internal candidate shall be determined by the Superintendent/ designee based exclusively on the following criteria:
  - a. Previous employment in the classification
  - b. Previous employment in the job title
  - c. Recognized experience working in the classification/job title as a substitute, temporary or permanent temporary
  - d. Education and/or training
  - e. Job related licenses and/or certificates
  - f. Evaluation
  - g. Meet the requirements of the job description
  - h. The results of a competency based test, if one is given
  - i. Where the foregoing factors are equal between the applicants, vacancies shall be filled with the most senior applicant from within the bargaining unit as defined in Article XI, Section D.
3. After a position has been posted for at least five (5) days, all transfers and reassignments are completed, and/or it has been determined that no member has applied for and/or is qualified to fill the position external candidates will be considered.
4. Temporary vacancies of 120 days or less shall not be posted.

## ARTICLE XXII - CLASSIFICATIONS

The district will seek to reach the following aspirational goals for Secretary and Office Assistant positions:

Building	Building Secretary	Office Assistant	Guidance Secretary	Athletic Secretary
Elementary	1.0 FTE	1.0 FTE	0	0
Intermediate	1.0 FTE	1.0 FTE	0	0
Middle	1.0 FTE	1.0 FTE	0	0.5 FTE
High	1.0 FTE	1.0 FTE	1.5 FTE	1.0 FTE



## ARTICLE XXIV — SALARY

- A. Members shall be paid the following based on their classification and experience using a new salary index, created for the 2022-2023 school year.

Pay increases shall be figured on the base pay for each classification at 3.01.25% for 2019-20202022-2023, retroactive payment back to beginning of contract year, paid within three (3) pay periods after Association ratifies and Board approval; 3.0% for 20203-20214, and 3.0% for 2024-2025. Members shall move steps if scheduled to do so.

A one time payment of \$200, payable May 30, 2020, for those who have completed one hundred twenty (120) days of service.

### E. Longevity Payments

Effective July 1, 2014, mMembers at step twenty-one (21) of the salary schedule shall receive two annual longevity payments of \$4500.00.

The longevity payments shall be made in two (2) equal installments on the last paycheck in June and the first paycheck in December. Only members employed for a six (6) month period prior to each installment shall be eligible for the longevity pay.

AH  
5/24/22  
KFM  
5-24-22  
JJB 5/24/22

**BWPSS Salary Index**

**Base**

**General  
Secretary /**

**Office Assistant**

**Teaching**

**Building**

<b>Step</b>	<b>Index</b>	<b>Assisant Index</b>	<b>Secretary Index</b>
0	1.0000	1.0000	1.0000
1	1.0250	1.0250	1.0250
2	1.0500	1.0500	1.0500
3	1.0750	1.0750	1.0750
4	1.1000	1.1000	1.1000
5	1.1250	1.1250	1.1250
6	1.1500	1.1500	1.1500
7	1.1750	1.1750	1.1750
8	1.2000	1.2000	1.2000
9	1.2250	1.2250	1.2250
10	1.2500	1.2500	1.2500
11	1.2750	1.2750	1.2750
12	1.3000	1.3000	1.3000
13	1.3250	1.3250	1.3250
14	1.3500	1.3500	1.3500
15	1.3750	1.3750	1.3750
16	1.4000	1.4000	1.4000
17	1.4250	1.4250	1.4250
18	1.4500	1.4500	1.4500
19	1.4750	1.4750	1.4750
20	1.5000	1.5000	1.5000

AT  
5/24/17  
7/2/17  
5-24-17

JTB 5/24/2017